
 

Board of Adjustment                                                                              October 8, 2014 

Township of Ocean Minutes 

                                                                                                                                             

SPECIAL MEETING: 7:00 P.M. Public Meeting Room 

Deal and Monmouth Roads 

Oakhurst 

              

MEMBERS  

PRESENT: 

Jane Grabelle 

Eric Menell 

John Napolitani, Alt II 

Peter Siano, Alt III 

Charles Theodora, Alt IV 

Richard Van Wagner 

James Worrell 

MEMBERS  

ABSENT: 

Maureen Bonney, Alt I 

Russell Malta  

Henry Schepiga, V Chair 

Warren Goode, Chair 

    

 

OTHERS PRESENT Mark A. Steinberg,  

James Higgins, P.P. 

William Fitzgerald, P.E. 

Marianne Wilensky,  

Rachel Montemarano, 

Zoning Board Attorney 

Board Planner 

Board Engineer 

Planning Administrator  

Board Secretary 

Recording Secretary 

   

Mr. Van Wagner served as Chairman for this application. 

 

Mr. Van Wagner announced that the notice requirements for the Open Public 

Meetings Act have been satisfied, a copy of the notice was sent to the Asbury Park 

Press and the Coaster, posted in the Township Hall, and filed in the Office of the 

Township Clerk on September 16, 2014. 

 

NEW CASE 

 

Heritage Village at 

Oakhurst, LLC 

Block 3 Lots 16.03, 16.04 

777 West Park Avenue 

Oakhurst  

Zone O-1/80 

This is an application for site plan approval. “D’ and “c” 

variances are required. 

 

 

 

Attorney for the applicant: Clint B. Allen, Esq. 

  

 Attorney for the applicant, Clint B. Allen, Esquire began with a history of the 

application, describing the previous preliminary approvals granted in 2013. He said that 

they have since improved the plan with additional parking and stormwater 

management on-site by adding lot 16.04 for which they require a use variance. 

 

 The Board’s information packet was marked B-1. Board Planner James Higgins, 

P.P. gave a history of the preliminary application, citing what the applicant had been 

granted, for the Board members that were not present for the hearing in 2013. He 

summarized his report, noting that the use variance was granted in 2013 when the use 

was found to be inherently beneficial.  Board Engineer William Fitzgerald, P.E. 

summarized his report, noting that the applicant has addressed drainage and 

stormwater management issues and that the details could be worked out during a 
technical review meeting between the professionals. He said that he strongly 

encourages the Board to grant the variance for change in grade in order to facilitate 
the proposed stormwater management system. He also noted that the proposed 

spotlight on the sign is not permitted and hopes that the applicant will change the plan 

to conform to the lighting ordinance. Mr. Fitzgerald said that the Township met with the 

County in order to discuss the path across Weltz Park and agreed to a multi-purpose 

path. Mr. Fitzgerald also discussed the storm drain easement and recommended that a 

new agreement be worked out. 

 

 Mr. Allen said that the Township executed the easement to maintain their 

drainage rights but that the applicant can approach Township Council in order to revisit 

the agreement.  

 
 



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 2 

Township of Ocean                                                                                            October 8, 2014 

 

 Mr. Allen said that 60 of the proposed units are intended to replace the units that 

were lost at Poplar Village. The entire project will be 100% affordable housing. 

 

 Christiana Foglio, president of CIS, explained that they were not chosen for the 

grant that they applied for when they were granted preliminary approvals in 2013, but 

they did secure $11 million of Hurricane Sandy money and from other places, including 

an HMFA mortgage. She said that CIS provides high quality housing that is available for 

those with independence issues. With this project, they can provide housing for Ocean 

Township residents that lost their homes at Poplar Village. She explained that when CIS 

took over Whalepond Village, this property became another possible location to fulfill 

the Township’s COAH obligations. Ms. Foglio said that the project is required to obtain a 

certificate of occupancy by July 1, 2015, but if they show consistent progress, they can 

be eligible for a six month extension. She explained that the State is looking to recapture 

funds from projects that are not moving along.  

 

 Edwin Caballero, PE, the project engineer, submitted a color rendering of the 

Dimension Layout and Landscape Plan into evidence A-1. He referred to A-1 to 

describe the environmental constraints of the site, including wetlands and a riparian 

buffer. He explained that there is no change in the proposed location of the building, 

but they have added lot 16.04 to increase the number of parking spaces and add the 

drainage basin. 140 parking spaces are required and they are proposing 140 spaces 

with hairpin striping. He said that they are requesting the variance for parking space 

width due to the environmental constraints. With regard to the driveway to West Park 

Avenue, they are proposing to remove the existing island and restripe delineated left 

and right turn lanes. Mr. Caballero described the stormwater management system 

which is proposed on the north side of the parking lot and is larger than previously 

approved.  He described the volume of the basin and said that it is designed in 

accordance with RSIS and NJDEP standards.  

 

 Mr. Caballero submitted an overall drainage plan that was marked into evidence 

A-2. He said that there will be no negative impact on the tributary area of Whalepond 

Brook from the basin. 

 

 An illustrative site plan prepared by Barton Partners dated May 10, 2013 was 

marked into evidence A-3. It shows the previously approved site plan. Mr. Caballero 

compared A-1 to A-3 to show the new plan versus the old plan.  

 

 Mr. Caballero said that utilities will be brought on-site from West Park Avenue to 

provide service. He described the lighting plan, that includes 20 ft. maximum height 

poles around the perimeter of the parking lot, poles in the islands and 3.5’ tall bollards. 

With regard to the sign, Mr. Caballero said that he will make sure that the light meets 

the lighting ordinance. Mr. Fitzgerald said that the light needs to be down-focused. Mr. 

Caballero referred to Mr. Fitzgerald’s report to discuss the stormwater basin. He said that 

it is a detention basin that has a sloped bottom with a low flow channel under the drain 

to intercept the remaining flow. Mr. Allen said that the professionals can discuss the 

details in a technical review meeting.  

 

 Mr. Allen said that they have submitted permits to different agencies, including 

the DEP and MCPB, but have not yet received any approvals. He said that they still 

need to submit the flood hazard line verification to the DEP. Mr. Allen asked that the 

Board approve the application conditioned upon receiving those approvals. Mr. 

Fitzgerald asked if they need the flood hazard line verification, as it can be a time 
consuming process. Mr. Allen said that he thinks it is prudent. Mr. Fitzgerald asked if the 

water meter would be below grade, as it is not clear on the plans. Mr. Caballero said 

that it will be underground.  

 

 Mr. Allen presented Maurice Rached, PE to present expert traffic testimony. Mr. 

Rached referred to his traffic report dated May 13, 2013 to discuss trip generation during 

peak hours. He compared the expected trips that would be generated by this use to 

the trips that would be generated from a permitted use at that location. Mr. Rached 

said that they can comply with the number of required parking spaces and they  



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 3 

Township of Ocean                                                                                            October 8, 2014 

 

exceed the ITE standards which require 61 spaces where they are providing 140 spaces. 

He said that this use would add a minimal amount of traffic in the AM and PM peak 

hours and that the driveway can handle the traffic. It is his expert opinion that the traffic 

impact would be negligible. Mr. Higgins said that he does not disagree. 

 

 Mr. Fitzgerald asked about a mid-block crossing across West Park Avenue. Mr. 

Rached said that it would need action by the governing body by ordinance. He 

explained that marked and unmarked intersections are crossings by default. A mid-

block crossing must be marked. He said that he feels that that may not be the best 

solution from a safety perspective.  

 

 Mr. Allen presented Thomas Barton, the architect for the project. The following 

items were submitted into evidence: 

 

  

A-4 North and northwest elevation dated 9/8/14 Pg. SUP-1 

A-5 West elevations 9/8/14 Pg. SUP-2 

 

 Mr. Barton said that there are 93 units total with 83 one bedroom units and 10 two 

bedroom units. Five of the units are fully accessible and two of the units are adapted for 

the hearing and visually impaired. The building has the same footprint as when it 

received preliminary approvals. With regard to indoor storage, the one bedroom units 

have 300 cubic feet and the two bedroom units have 400-420 cubic feet. He said that 

there are no issues with this amount of storage at other locations. Mr. Barton said that 

the colors and materials are the same, but they now have more details and numbers of 

color chips. He referred to A-4 to describe the elevation, which includes balconies and 

architectural elements so that the façade does not appear long and flat. 

 

 Ms. Foglio said that there will be an emergency generator in common areas and 

to power elevators. She explained that the building was designed with resiliency design 

elements for best practices in “Sandy-like” events. She said that they will be able to 

provide quality of life elements in emergency situations.  

 

 The planner for the project, John Madden, submitted the following exhibits into 

evidence: 

 

A-6 Exhibit listing the new variances requested  

A-7 Exhibit listing the variances that have previously been approved. 

 

 Mr. Madden referred to A-6, and explained that Lot 16.04 merged with 16.03 in 

order to provide support for extra parking and the basin. He said that the units are 100% 

affordable and it is an inherently beneficial use. He said that the benefits of adding Lot 

16.04 include providing for more parking and flood control. Mr. Madden said that there 

are no detriments as it is not likely that Lot 16.04 would be developed in any other way 

as it is located behind lots that are already developed. Mr. Madden referred to the 

exhibits to go through the requested variances.  

 

 Mr. Madden said that there are no detriments and that the C-2 variances are 

advancing the purpose of the Municipal Land Use Law and the zone plan as they are 

facilitating inherently beneficial affordable senior citizen housing. 

 

 The Board took a break at 9:17 PM and resumed at 9:30 PM. 
 

 Mr. Allen said that there are no other witnesses to present. The Board discussed 

the remaining issues to be worked out between the applicant and the Township, 

including the easement agreement and the multi-purpose path. With regard to the 

access easement to Route 35, the applicant will assist the Township in obtaining the 

access, but there will be no monetary assistance should property need to be acquired. 

The basin will be subject to Mr. Fitzgerald’s approval. The applicant is willing to donate 

$35,000 – $50,000 to the Shade Tree Fund. Ms. Foglio explained that they will get $35,000 

within five days of the construction loan closing with the possibility of an additional  



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 4 

Township of Ocean                                                                                            October 8, 2014 

 

$15,000 contingency allotment. Ms. Foglio said that the closing usually takes place 

within 90 days of the issuance of a building permit. Mr. Allen said that they will install an 

irrigation system in the landscaped areas per the ordinance requirements. Mr. Higgins 

said that he does not consider the basin to be a landscaped area. 

 

A motion to close the public hearing was made by Jane Grabelle and seconded 

by Charles Theodora. 

 

In Favor: Grabelle, Menell, Napolitani, Siano, Theodora, Van Wagner, Worrell 

Opposed:  None 

 

A motion to approve the D-1 use variance for additional lot 16.04 was made by 

Jane Grabelle and seconded by James Worrell. 

 

In Favor: Grabelle, Menell, Napolitani, Siano, Theodora, Van Wagner, Worrell 

Opposed:  None 

Ineligible:  None 

Absent: Bonney, Malta, Schepiga, Goode 

 

A motion to approve the bulk variances was made by Jane Grabelle and 

seconded by James Worrell. 

 

In Favor: Grabelle, Menell, Napolitani, Siano, Theodora, Van Wagner, Worrell 

Opposed:  None 

Ineligible:  None 

Absent: Bonney, Malta, Schepiga, Goode  

 

A motion to approve the preliminary and final site plan was made by Jane 

Grabelle and seconded by James Worrell. 
 

In Favor: Grabelle, Menell, Napolitani, Siano, Theodora, Van Wagner, Worrell 

Opposed:  None 

Ineligible:  None 

Absent: Bonney, Malta, Schepiga, Goode  

  

 The Board voted to amend the bulk variance approval to include a lighting 

variance for the illumination of light spillage. A motion was made by Jane Grabelle and 

seconded by James Worrell. 

 

In Favor: Grabelle, Menell, Napolitani, Siano, Theodora, Van Wagner, Worrell 

Opposed:  None 

Ineligible:  None 

Absent: Bonney, Malta, Schepiga, Goode  

 

To be memorialized on October 23, 2014. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 9:55 P.M.  

 Rachel Montemarano 

 Board Secretary 

 Recording Secretary 

 


